
 

 

 

AGENDA 

   LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

April 16, 2024   5:30 PM 

TO BE HELD AT:  The Ridge at Laurens 

301 Exchange Road, Laurens, SC 29360 

Bobby Smith, Chairman; Tom Robertson, Vice-Chairman 
                                                          Commission Members: Sylvester Grant, Casey Robinson,  

                                                        Ed Burns, Abney Smith, and Michael Floyd 

 

April 16, 2024 

 

1. Call to Order -Chairman Bobby Smith 

2. Invocation- Commissioner Michael Floyd 

3. Pledge of Allegiance- Chairman Bobby Smith 

4. Approval of Agenda- April 16, 2024 

5. Approval of Minutes- February 20, 2024, and March 12, 2024 

6. New Business- 

a. The Applicant,  Bruce Parris, is seeking approval of a Preliminary Plat/Plan for the development 

of a new Tiny Home/Cottage Home community named “The Timbers”, using permanent, tiny 
home RV park models, located at 3315 Metric Road, Laurens County.   

b. The Applicant, A Thousand Hills Properties, LLC through Agent Matthew Christian, is seeking 

approval of a Preliminary Plat/Plan for the development of a new RV Park named “WaterOak 

RV Park” and located on the northeast side of Highway 76 East, south of the City of Clinton in 
Laurens County. 

7. Old Business/Discussion Item-  

a. Review and Discussion of the Comprehensive Plan Draft 

8. Adjournment-  Chairman  



 

1 

 

    MINUTES 

 LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

     February 20, 2024 

5:30 pm 

 LAURENS COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 

CONFERENCE ROOM 
Bobby Smith, Chairman, Tom Robertson, Vice-Chairman 

Commission Members: Sylvester Grant, 
Casey Robinson, Ed Burns, Abney Smith, and Michael Floyd 

 
 

February 20, 2024 
 

Commissioners Present: Bobby Smith, Tom Robertson, Michael Floyd, and Ed Burns 
 

Commissioners Absent: Abney Smith, Sylvester Grant, and Casey Robinson  
 

Call to Order – Chairman Bobby Smith called the meeting to order at 5:30 PM. 
 

Invocation- Commissioner Michael Floyd 
 

Pledge of Allegiance- Chairman Bobby Smith led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Approval of Agenda –February 20, 2024 - The approval of the agenda for February 20, 2024, 

was first motioned by Commissioner Ed Burns, with a second motion by Commissioner Tom 
Robertson. 

 

 Approved 4-0 
 
Approval of Minutes – January 16, 2024 - The approval of minutes from January 16, 2024, 

was motioned to approve by Commissioner Tom Robertson and seconded by Commissioner 
Michael Floyd.  

  

Approved 4-0 

 
Old Business- 

 
a. Discussion Item- The Comprehensive Plan Status 

Chairman Bobby Smith started to discuss the Comprehensive Plan with the Commissioners. 
It was mentioned that he would like all of the utilities, school districts, police, fire, EMS, and 
dispatch to have an open discussion about what they would like to see in the Comprehensive 

Plan. Chairman Smith decided to hold a meeting with these departments and entities on 
March 12, 2024, at 6:00 PM with Mr. Blake Sanders to go over any questions or concerns 

each party had with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 

b. Public Commenting- No Comment 

  
 



 

2 

 

New Business- 

a. Discussion Item- Training for Commissioners 
The type of training and the number of hours per year for each commissioner were 

discussed.  
 

Adjournment- Chairman Bobby Smith adjourned the meeting at 6:45 p.m. with a motion 
from Commissioner Tom Robertson and a second by Commissioner Michael Floyd. 
  

Approved 4-0 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 
Cortni Motes, Clerk 3 
Laurens County Public Works 



 

1 

 

    MINUTES 

 LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

     March 12, 2024 

6:00 PM 

 THE RIDGE AT LAURENS 
Bobby Smith, Chairman, Tom Robertson, Vice-Chairman 

Commission Members: Sylvester Grant, 
Casey Robinson, Ed Burns, Abney Smith, and Michael Floyd 

 
 

March 12, 2024 
 

Commissioners Present: Bobby Smith, Tom Robertson, Michael Floyd, Abney Smith, and 

Casey Robinson. 
 

Commissioners Absent: Sylvester Grant and Ed Burns  
 

Call to Order – Chairman Bobby Smith called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM. 
 

Invocation- Commissioner Michael Floyd 
 

Approval of Agenda –March 12, 2024—Commissioner Abney Smith first motioned to 
approve the agenda for March 12, 2024, with Commissioner Casey Robinson seconding. 

 

 Approved 5-0 

 
Old Business- 
 

a. Discussion Item- Stakeholder Input Regarding Comprehensive Plan. 
Chairman Bobby Smith discussed the Comprehensive Plan with the Commissioners and 

stakeholders. Several stakeholders offered up their thoughts on items they would like to see in 
the Comprehensive Plan. Mr. Blake Sanders took notes on ideas and suggestions, and he will 
bring the revised Comprehensive Plan to the Planning Commission on April 16th.  The 

location of the April meeting is planned for The Ridge at 5:30 PM.  

 
Adjournment- Chairman Bobby Smith adjourned the meeting at 7:37 p.m. with a motion 

from Commissioner Abney Smith and a second by Commissioner Tom Robertson. 

 

Approved 5-0 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Cortni Motes, Clerk 3 
Laurens County Public Works 



1 
 

       LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

                   Tuesday, April 16, 2024 

                               5:30 PM 

TO BE HELD AT:  The Ridge at Laurens 

  301 Exchange Road, Laurens, SC 29360 

 

                       LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

                   STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:  LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM:  PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

HEARING DATE:  TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2024 

SUBJECT:   REVIEW FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN/PLAT 

FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF “THE TIMBERS”, A NEW TINY 

COTTAGE HOME COMMUNITY PARK 

 

I.  APPLICATION 

A. Application: Preliminary Plat/Plan approval. 

 B.  Owner:   B Grady Properties, LLC    

 C.  Applicant:  Bruce Parris    

 D.  Developer:    TBD  

 E.  Engineer:     Canebrake Engineering 

F.  Agent:          Bruce Parris          

G. Request:     The Applicant, Bruce Parris, is seeking Preliminary Plat/Plan approval for 

the development of a tiny Cottage Home Community Park named “The 

Timbers”.  

II.  PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 A.  Property Tax ID:  349-00-00-007 

 B.  Location:  Approximately  2,500 feet West of U.S. Hwy. 385, at 3315 Metric Road, 

Laurens County. 

 C.  Property Size:   Approximately 16.49 acres. 



2 
 

 D.  Proposed Density:  Forty (40) pad/lot spaces. 

 E.  Current Land Uses:  Vacant Rural land. 

 F.  Surrounding Current Land Uses: 

       North:  Agriculture 

       East:  Timber lands 

       South: Vacant platted lots 

       West:  Agriculture 

 G. Utilities:  A LCWSC waterline is present along Metric Road.  Sewer lines are not present, 

the Applicant proposes the use of a communal septic system. 

III.  PROJECT BACKGROUND  

 The Applicant is seeking approval of a Preliminary Plat/Plan for the development of a tiny 
home Cottage Home Community Park using RV park models designed for permanent 
residency, with transient uses not being permitted.  The units will be individually owned, 

and a Homeowners Association with covenants will be established for the care of the park.  
A community center is proposed to be added to the park at a later date. 

 The park will consist of 40 pads for home units and the access to the park will be paved.  
The access within the park is proposed to be gravel. 

 The perimeter of the project will be buffered with a minimum fifty (50) foot undisturbed, 
natural buffer as a land use buffer.  

IV.   STAFF REVIEW 

  The Applicants met with Staff for a Pre-Application meeting to discuss the preliminary 
plans.  As a commercial project, the submitted application was reviewed by the County’s 

Building Department Staff.  Staff finds that the Preliminary Plat/Plan is in accordance with 
the County’s Code of Ordinances, provided the additional conditions set below are 

included. 

V. REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL OF THE APPLICANT’S REQUEST BY THE 

COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 The Planning Commission has the following options in the recommendation of the 

Preliminary Plan/Plat approval request: 

 

1.  Approve Staff’s recommendation. 
2.  Approve Staff’s recommendation with conditions. 

3   Approve Staff’s recommendation with additional or changed conditions 
recommended by the Commission. 

4.  Recommend denial of the Applicant’s request. 



3 
 

 

VI.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plan/Plat for “The Timbers” tiny cottage 

home development, with the following conditions: 

1) In accordance with Ord. #926, Appendix B, Sec. C (a),  Prior to approval of a grading permit, 
silt fencing shall be established and entrenched along the land use buffer boundary (and the 
streetscape zone) inside the property lines to protect it from construction activities and prevent 
unnecessary disturbance and erosion of soils.  The buffer shall remain undisturbed throughout 
the use of the park. 

2) In accordance with Sec. 28-25 (j) of Chapter 28, Article II, “Areas of disturbed ground (during 
construction) shall be covered or protected with vegetative growth capable of preventing soil 
erosion and preserving natural features and landscape as much as possible (following 

construction).”  

3) A Landscape Plan shall be submitted with the Construction Site Plan and all lot setbacks, 
perimeter buffers, and rights-of-way shall have their distance and widths detailed, labeled, and 
shown on the Construction Site Plan. 

4) A grading permit will not be issued for the project until the Construction Site Plan is submitted 
for Staff review and all necessary approvals have been received by SCDOT, County Roads & 
Bridges Dept., and SCDHEC.    

 

 

 

 

Exhibit Attachments: 

 
A. Applicant’s Preliminary Plat/Plan Application 

B. Applicant’s introduction to the project 

C. Property Location Aerial Map 

D.  Site Plan/Plat 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 



April 2024 Laurens County Planning Commission meeting ( 4/16th 5pm ) 

 

As I have attended your Planning Commission meetings, I have listened to the same arguments 

many times over against R.V. Parks. Some of these include: 

• Attracts wrong kind of people 

• Large rigs coming in and out 

• Loud 

• People not committed to the community 

• Developers ruining our small community way of life 

It would be nice to purchase a large piece of property and just leave it like it is, but that is not 

normally realistic for most people.  We had to come up with a plan to develop our 40 acres.  So 

we went to work trying to figure out the best use for our new property.  Presently, our plan is to 

break up and sell off the front 24 acres of the property into four large “Homestead” parcels that 

will fit very nicely with the surrounding homes on Metric Road.  We want to build a Tiny Home 

Community on the remaining 16 acres at the rear of the property.  The only thing you will see 

from Metric Rd of our project will be an attractive gated entrance with stone columns, rustic 

fencing, and landscaping.  After going through our gated entrance, you will continue down a 

1400’ paved country drive through big oaks and cedars as you approach the Tiny Home 

Community.  

 
 



 

Let me try to define a ”Tiny Home”.  A Tiny Home is a manufactured, movable, 399 sq ft or less 

home.  They are built to high standards and hold their value like a stick-built house.  They are 

inspected at the plant as an R.V. Park Model, ANSI Park Model Section 119.5.  Park Models are 

designed and built to be used as permanent residences.  They are set up on concrete block 

piers, tied-down, and under-pinned. 

 

A Tiny Home Community normally attracts a certain type of person.  Typically, they are a little 

bit older and many single women like these communities.  They are normally down-sizing from 

nice homes, in nice communities and are usually looking to simplify their lives.  They still want a 

nice, well built home in a nice, secure neighborhood.  The Tiny Home that we will sell our 

residents, will be built in a state of the art facility with upper-end building materials, and will 

cost them around $300/ sq ft..  Only new homes will be allowed in our community.  These 

Tiny Home Community 



people are used to living in developments with HOA rules and regulations.  They expect rules to 

live under and want those rules enforced if and when they are broken.  The residents will sign a 

strict contract in order to be allowed to live in our community and we will have a resident 

manager that will watch over the community and enforce the rules. 

 

 

 

The residents will own their homes, but will rent the space from us.  We will maintain all of the 

grounds of the community and provide utilities and security.  The residents will be responsible 



for the maintenance of their homes, but to our standards.  We will assist in that effort by 

keeping an approved list of subcontractors for the residents to choose from. 

We want to create a community environment for our residents so, we plan to use the 50’ 

setback around the perimeter of our property to provide a half-mile walking trail.  There will be 

firepits scattered around the community.  Tentative plans are to build a community building for 

larger gatherings, exercise, and T.V. get togethers as the community grows. 

Our residents will pay taxes into Laurens County and will want to be a part of all that Laurens 

County and Upstate South Carolina has to offer.   

As I am sure you have gathered by now, this is not like any R.V. Park you have approved in 

Laurens County.   Many of the counties in South Carolina have already approved Tiny Home 

Communities and they are thriving.   

Hopefully, you will all see this as a great addition to Laurens County that does not come with 

some of the problems that people have experienced with R.V. Parks.  I ask you to support and 

approve our project. 

 

 



 



IPO 1/2" RB

IPO 1/2" RBC

IPO 1/2" RB

PINE TREE

IPO 1/2" RB

OLD MON. ROCK

IPO 1/2" RB

N23°12'50"E

1101.19

N60°59'06"E

295.38

S39°32'26"E
70.33

S17°17'13"E

589.20

S15°54'37"E151.89'

S16°57'04"E161.57'

S16°56'11"E142.44'

IPO 1/2" RB

TRACT 3
1,088,195 SF
24.98 ACRES

TRACT 1
217,669 SF
5.00 ACRES

N12°48'38"W

533.04

S74°06'45"W

330.95

S84°33'05"W
77.18

S8
4°

24
'4

4"
W

17
4.

74
'

SHEET       OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

FIELD:

DRAFTED:

REVIEWED:

THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF
CANEBRAKE, LLC. FOR USE BY THE CLIENT.

IT MAY NOT BE USED, MODIFIED,
REPRODUCED, OR RELIED UPON WITHOUT
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF CANEBRAKE,

LLC. OR AS REQUIRED BY LAW.

C200

REVISED / ISSUED:

REGISTRATION:

PROJECT:

OWNER/CLIENT:

CITY:

COUNTY:

STATE:

FFE

R/W
RB

OT
N&C
IPO
IPS

EP
CT

RIGHT OF WAY

OPEN TOP
NAIL & CAP
IRON PIN OLD
IRON PIN SET

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
CRIMP TOP

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

UNDERGROUND TEL

SANITARY SEWER 
OVERHEAD TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND POWER

OVERHEAD POWER
GAS LINE

GAS METER
GAS VALVE

WATER METER
TELEPHONE

SYMBOLS

LIGHT POLE
IRON PIN

FFE
ELEVATION

R/W
RB

OT
N&C
IPO
IPS

EP
CT

STORM SEWER 

FENCELINE

RIGHT OF WAY
REBAR

OPEN TOP
NAIL & CAP
IRON PIN OLD
IRON PIN SET

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
CRIMP TOP

ABBREVIATIONS

LINETYPES

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

UNDERGROUND TEL

SANITARY SEWER
OVERHEAD TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND POWER

OVERHEAD POWER

WATER LINE 

GAS LINE

GAS METER
GAS VALVE

WATER METER
TELEPHONE
LIGHT POLE
IRON PIN

LEGEND

FINISHED FLOOR

RAILROAD
DITCHLINE

POWER POLE
SR SOLID ROD

LOCATION MAP (NOT TO SCALE)

1 IN =      FT

(FEET)

GRAPHIC SCALE

050 50 100
50

20025

Know what's below.Call before you dig.

BOUNDARY SURVEY & BASE DRAWING
INFORMATION BY CANEBRAKE, LLC. CONTOURS

BY PUBLIC LIDAR SOURCES

I HAVE PLACED MY SIGNATURE AND SEAL ON THE DESIGN DOCUMENTS
SUBMITTED SIGNIFYING THAT I ACCEPT RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE DESIGN

OF THE SYSTEM. FURTHER, I CERTIFY TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE
AND BELIEF THAT THE DESIGN IS CONSISTENT WITH THE REQUIREMENTS

OF TITLE 48, CHAPTER 14 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SC, 1976 AS
AMENDED, PURSUANT TO REGULATION 72-300 ET SEQ. (IF APPLICABLE),

AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SCR100000."

20
2 

W
 M

A
IN

 S
TR

EE
T,

 C
LI

N
TO

N
, 

S
C
 2

93
25

86
4-

83
3-

47
57

  
  

 J
O

S
EP

H
@

C
A
N

EB
R
A
K
EC

IV
IL

.C
O

M

LAURENS
COUNTY TINY

HOMES

BRUCE PARRIS

LAURENS

SOUTH CAROLINA
XXXX

XXXX

XXXX

1" = 50'

N/A

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

XXXX

C201

M
ATCHLINE

C201

I-385 N

FLAT RU
FF

C
H

 RD

METRIC RD

G
H
O

ST

CREEK RD

40'x10' TINY HOME (TYP OF 40)

FUTURE COMMUNITY BUILDING

SEPTIC SYSTEM

DISPERSED STORMWATER LID'S
THROUGHOUT TO ADDRESS WATER
QUANTITY AND QUALITY

24'

40'

10'

12'

20'

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

DUMPSTER PAD

100' 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE SHOWN FOR THE CONTRACTOR'S CONVENIENCE ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERE MAY BE OTHER UTILITIES NOT SHOWN ON THESE PLANS. THE ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE LOCATIONS SHOWN AND IT SHALL BE THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY THE LOCATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE WORK. ALL DAMAGE MADE TO EXISTING UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
***CAUTION***

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANEBRAKE, LLC  No. 6146

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F  THOMAS & CASSANDRA R GAINES TM# 349-00-00-016 DB:1721  PG:38 PB:A980 PG:2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F  JUDITH BURNS A TRUSTEE TM# 349-00-00-006 DB:1376  PG:301 PB:20 PG:30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F  ORA PROPERTY HOLDINGS TM# 349-00-00-002 DB:536  PG:111 PB:3 PG:118

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-385 INTERSTATE R/W



L7

IPO 1/2" RB

IPO 1/2" RBC

IPO 1/2" RB

PINE TREE

IPO 1/2" RB

OLD MON. ROCK

IPO 1/2" RB

IPO 3/4" OT

IPO 3/4" CT

IPO 1/2" CT

IPO 3/4" CT

IPO 1/2" RB

IPO 1/2" RB

IPO 1/2" PIPE

IPO 3/4" PIPE

(INCLUDES ANY & ALL R/W)

N23°12'50"E

1101.19

N60°59'06"E

295.38

S39°32'26"E
70.33

S17°17'13"E

589.20

S15°54'37"E151.89'
S16°57'04"E161.57'

S16°56'11"E142.44'

S16°37'33"E188.05'

S14°02'33"E174.93'

S74°46'30"W
170.40'

S21°58'35"W
360.57

S7°43'52"W 362.61

IPS

IPS

N
84

°0
3'

06
"E

39
3.

54

S15°22'16"E243.58'

S12°46'06"E213.06'

IPO 1/2" RB/CAP

N51°10'12"W
265.26'

IPO 3/4" PIPE

N53°27'59"W
95.17' (TIE)

IPO 1/2" RB

IPO 1/2" RB

TRACT 3
1,088,195 SF
24.98 ACRES

TRACT 4
239,388 SF
5.50 ACRES

TRACT 1
217,669 SF
5.00 ACRES

TRACT 2
206,651 SF
4.74 ACRES

N51°10'12"W
212.09

N51°10'12"W
104.95

N53°24'20"W
52.35

L1 C1

L2

L3

C2L5
L6

N59°25'18"W

S38°49'48"W

280.61

N0°33'43"E

519.01

N0°34'50"E

952.15

N12°48'38"W

533.04

S74°06'45"W

330.95

S84°33'05"W
77.18

S8
4°

24
'4

4"
W

17
4.

74
'

N53°24'20"W
61.81

CURVE TABLE

N7°43'52"E355.50

N21°58'35"E

363.56N15°22'16"W

212.85

S74°37'44"W

275.61

S38°23'37"W
191.04'

S5
1°

36
'2

2"
E

13
5.

64
'

SHEET       OF

HORIZONTAL SCALE:

VERTICAL SCALE:

FIELD:

DRAFTED:

REVIEWED:

THIS DRAWING IS THE PROPERTY OF
CANEBRAKE, LLC. FOR USE BY THE CLIENT.

IT MAY NOT BE USED, MODIFIED,
REPRODUCED, OR RELIED UPON WITHOUT
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF CANEBRAKE,

LLC. OR AS REQUIRED BY LAW.

C200

REVISED / ISSUED:

REGISTRATION:

PROJECT:

OWNER/CLIENT:

CITY:

COUNTY:

STATE:

FFE

R/W
RB

OT
N&C
IPO
IPS

EP
CT

RIGHT OF WAY

OPEN TOP
NAIL & CAP
IRON PIN OLD
IRON PIN SET

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
CRIMP TOP

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

UNDERGROUND TEL

SANITARY SEWER 
OVERHEAD TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND POWER

OVERHEAD POWER
GAS LINE

GAS METER
GAS VALVE

WATER METER
TELEPHONE

SYMBOLS

LIGHT POLE
IRON PIN

FFE
ELEVATION

R/W
RB

OT
N&C
IPO
IPS

EP
CT

STORM SEWER 

FENCELINE

RIGHT OF WAY
REBAR

OPEN TOP
NAIL & CAP
IRON PIN OLD
IRON PIN SET

EDGE OF PAVEMENT
CRIMP TOP

ABBREVIATIONS

LINETYPES

WATER VALVE

FIRE HYDRANT

UNDERGROUND TEL

SANITARY SEWER
OVERHEAD TELEPHONE

UNDERGROUND POWER

OVERHEAD POWER

WATER LINE 

GAS LINE

GAS METER
GAS VALVE

WATER METER
TELEPHONE
LIGHT POLE
IRON PIN

LEGEND

FINISHED FLOOR

RAILROAD
DITCHLINE

POWER POLE
SR SOLID ROD

LOCATION MAP (NOT TO SCALE)

1 IN =      FT

(FEET)

GRAPHIC SCALE

0100 100 200
100

40050

Know what's below.Call before you dig.

BOUNDARY SURVEY & BASE DRAWING
INFORMATION BY CANEBRAKE, LLC. CONTOURS

BY PUBLIC LIDAR SOURCES

I HAVE PLACED MY SIGNATURE AND SEAL ON THE DESIGN DOCUMENTS
SUBMITTED SIGNIFYING THAT I ACCEPT RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE DESIGN

OF THE SYSTEM. FURTHER, I CERTIFY TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE
AND BELIEF THAT THE DESIGN IS CONSISTENT WITH THE REQUIREMENTS

OF TITLE 48, CHAPTER 14 OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SC, 1976 AS
AMENDED, PURSUANT TO REGULATION 72-300 ET SEQ. (IF APPLICABLE),

AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SCR100000."

20
2 

W
 M

A
IN

 S
TR

EE
T,

 C
LI

N
TO

N
, 

S
C
 2

93
25

86
4-

83
3-

47
57

  
  

 J
O

S
EP

H
@

C
A
N

EB
R
A
K
EC

IV
IL

.C
O

M

LAURENS
COUNTY TINY

HOMES

BRUCE PARRIS

LAURENS

SOUTH CAROLINA
XXXX

XXXX

XXXX

1" = 50'

N/A

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN

XXXX

C201

M
ATCHLINE

C201

I-385 N

FLAT RU
FF

C
H

 RD

METRIC RD

G
H
O

ST

CREEK RD

SEPTIC SYSTEM

AutoCAD SHX Text
METRIC ROAD (S-30-23, 66' PUBLIC R/W) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGT

AutoCAD SHX Text
UGP

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SS

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OHP

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text
IP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE UTILITIES SHOWN ARE SHOWN FOR THE CONTRACTOR'S CONVENIENCE ONLY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
THERE MAY BE OTHER UTILITIES NOT SHOWN ON THESE PLANS. THE ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE LOCATIONS SHOWN AND IT SHALL BE THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY THE LOCATIONS OF ALL UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHIN THE LIMITS OF THE WORK. ALL DAMAGE MADE TO EXISTING UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
***CAUTION***

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANEBRAKE, LLC  No. 6146

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-385 INTERSTATE R/W



1 
 

    LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

             Tuesday, April 16, 2024 

                          5:30 PM 

          TO BE HELD AT:  The Ridge at Laurens 

           301 Exchange Road, Laurens, SC 29360 

 

                                      LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

                             STAFF REPORT 

 

TO:  LAURENS COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

FROM:  PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

HEARING DATE:  TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2024 

SUBJECT:   REVIEW FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE PRELIMINARY PLAN/PLAT 

FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A NEW RECREATIONAL VEHICLE 

PARK, THE “WATEROAK RV PARK.” 

 

I.  APPLICATION 

A. Application: Preliminary Plat/Plan approval. 

 B.  Owner:   A Thousand Hills Properties, LLC            

 C.  Applicant:  A Thousand Hills Properties, LLC            

 D.  Developer:    TBD  

 E.  Engineer:     Matthew Christian, Gray Engineering 

F.  Agent:   Matthew Christian          

G. Request:     The Applicant, A Thousand Hills Properties, LLC, is seeking 

Preliminary Plat/Plan approval for the development of a new 

Recreational Vehicle Park, named “WaterOak RV Park”.  

II.  PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 A.  Property Tax ID:  679-00-00-011 

 B.  Location:   Located approximately 1,465 feet S.E. of Hurricane Church Road, S.E. of 

the Clinton city limits, on the northeast side of Highway 76 East, Laurens 

County. 



2 
 

 C.  Property Size:   Approximately 11.81 acres total. 

 D.  Proposed Density:  Forty-eight (48) parking pad spaces. 

 E.  Current Land Uses:  Vacant Rural land. 

 F.  Surrounding Current Land Uses: 

       North:  Light Industrial (CCL Label Plant) 

       East:  Railroad tracks and Agricultural 

       South: Vacant Rural land. 

       West:  Rural Land, Single family 

 G. Utilities:  A LCWSC waterline is present along Hwy 76 East. Sewer lines are not 
present. The Park will utilize a communal-style septic system. 

 

III.  PROJECT BACKGROUND  

 The Applicant is seeking approval of a Preliminary Plat/Plan for the development of a 
new recreational vehicle park in the Clinton area consisting of forty-eight (48) 

recreational vehicle pad/spaces.  The Applicant proposes only to allow self-contained 
RVs, so bath houses will not be required, as per Chapter 28 Parks and Recreation, Article 

II, Section 28-25(p) of the County’s Code of Ordinances.  The site will consist of a 
circular, one-way gravel drive with an asphalt apron to access the RV pads.   

 The perimeter of the project will be buffered with a twenty-five (25) foot undisturbed, 
natural buffer in the rear of the property in addition to a fence to protect campers and 
animals from the railroad tracks, and 50-foot buffers around the remainder of the 

property.  A landscape plan detailing the landscaped streetscape zone along Hwy 76 
East shall be required at the time of Construction Site Plan submittal.  Both detention 

ponds will be protected by fencing.   

A graveyard exists onsite consisting of the graves of several Civil War soldiers.  As per 

the SC State law, Title 27, Article III, Section 27-43-310, the Applicant will provide 
access to the site for those that fit the requirements of Section A of that Article.  The 
graveyard will be fenced and will have a gate.    

  Each RV pad will have access to solid waste risers for hook-up to each vehicle.  The 
Applicant will be installing three, 1500 gallon (communal) septic tanks onsite for the 

waste. 

 The Applicant will be providing two large dumpsters for additional solid waste disposal. 



3 
 

IV.   STAFF REVIEW 

  The Applicants met with Staff for a Pre-Application meeting to discuss the preliminary 

plans.  As a commercial project, the submitted application was reviewed by the County’s 
Building Department Staff.  Staff finds that the Preliminary Plat/Plan is in accordance 

with Chapter 28 Parks and Recreation, Article II, provided the additional conditions set 
below are included. 

V. REQUIREMENTS FOR APPROVAL OF THE APPLICANT’S REQUEST BY 

THE COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION 

 In accordance with Title 6, Chapter 29 of State of South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976 

as amended, and the Laurens County Chapter 28 Parks and Recreation, Article II, 
Section 28-27(b) the Planning Commission must find that all of the following factors 

have been met to recommend approval of the Preliminary Plan: 

Section 28-27(b) Campsite plans that will accommodate more than two individual 
units must be approved by the Laurens County Planning Commission and designed 

with the following provisions on a site plan: 

(1)  All individual campsite layouts, property lines, buffers, and setbacks;  

 Staff’s Findings:  Provided. 

(2)  Landscape plan and signage plan;  

 Staff’s Findings:  Will be required at the Construction Site Plan stage. 

(3)  Road provisions for access to each developed site;  

 Staff’s Findings:  Provided.  Specific construction details will be required at the 
Construction Site Plan stage. 

(4)  All water, sewer/septic and electrical amenities;  

 Staff’s Findings:  Will be required on the utilities plan during the Construction Site Plan 
stage.  The Applicant has shown the location of a dedicated communal sanitary waste 
dump site on the plan, and each parking pad will provide sewer line risers for each vehicle. 

(5)  DHEC approvals for septic/sewer systems, soil erosion and sediment control;  

 Staff’s Findings:  Approval letters will be required during the Construction Site Plan 

stage. 

(6)  Location and layout of bathhouses;  

 Staff’s Findings:  The RV park will not be required to provide bathhouses since all RV 

units will be self-contained. 

(7)  Trash disposal/containment plan that includes the type of containers and a 
schedule for trash pick-up;  

 Staff’s Findings:  The locations of the two dumpsters are shown on the site plan and the 
sizes meet the minimum requirements for the development type. 



4 
 

(8)  Any other structures associated with the property development (i.e. picnic 
shelters, swimming pools, boat ramps, piers, club houses). 

 Staff’s Findings:  An office will be provided onsite. 

The Planning Commission has the following options in the recommendation of the 

Preliminary Plan/Plat approval request: 
 

1.  Approve Staff’s recommendation. 
2.  Approve Staff’s recommendation with conditions. 
3   Approve Staff’s recommendation with additional or changed conditions 

recommended by the Commission. 
4.  Recommend denial of the Applicant’s request. 

 

VI.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plan/Plat for the WaterOak RV Park 

with the following conditions: 

1) In accordance with Chapter 28, Article II, Sec. 28-5 (g), “RV parks and campgrounds are 
commercial designations in accordance with the Laurens County Assessor's office and must 
have an operational issued by Laurens County Building codes. Their utility use should 
accordingly be designated as a commercial use.   

2) Since recreational vehicle parks are considered a commercial, “temporary living quarters for 
recreational, camping, or seasonal use” by County code definition, should the park become a 
park used for permanent, year-round use, the park and campers must be redesigned to comply 
with the Laurens County Manufactured Home Park Ordinance. (Laurens County Code of 

Ordinances, Chapter 28, Article II, Sec. 28-4 Definitions and Sec. 28-25. (a))  

3) In addition, as a temporary recreational use, “No structure or addition can be attached to or 
supported by a recreational vehicle that would render the vehicle immobile. All structures and 
construction associated with campgrounds or recreational vehicle parks must be permitted and 
inspected by the Laurens County Building Codes Department.”  (Chapter 28, Article II, Sec. 
28-5 (h)) 

4) Should the Recreational Vehicle Park propose to allow for inclusion of manufactured homes, 
the mixed use is only permitted “where the higher standard, mobile home park, applies” and 
must be redesigned in accordance with the County’s Manufactured Home Park Ordinance. 
(Chapter 28, Article II, Sec. 28-25. (c)) 

5) The owner of the property or the operating agent shall be responsible for maintaining the camp 
in compliance with these regulations. (Chapter 28, Article II , Sec. 28-5 (g)) 

6) In accordance with Ord. #926, Appendix B, Sec. C (a),  “Prior to approval of a grading permit, 
silt fencing shall be established and entrenched along the landward land use buffer boundary 
(and the streetscape zone) to protect it from construction activities and prevent unnecessary 
disturbance and erosion of soils.”  The buffer shall remain undisturbed throughout the use of 
the park. 

7) In accordance with Sec. 28-25 (j) of Chapter 28, Article II, “Areas of disturbed ground (during 
construction) shall be covered or protected with vegetative growth capable of preventing soil 



5 
 

erosion and preserving natural features and landscape as much as possible (following 
construction).”  

8) The Recreational Vehicle Park and owner shall be in compliance with Chapter 28, Article II 
throughout the duration of the park’s existence.  Any change in ownership or use shall be in 
compliance with Chapter 28, Article II and/or Ordinance # 934. 

9) Details for the landscaped streetscape and/or berm shall be provided in a Landscaped Plan, 
submitted with the Construction Site Plan. 

 

 

 
Exhibit Attachments: 
 
A. Applicant’s Preliminary Plat/Plan Application 

B.  Acting Agent form 

C. Property Location Aerial Maps 

D. Project Conceptual Plan/Plat 

E. Laurens County Public Works Code of Ordinances Chapter 28, Article II  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



48

WATEROAK CAMPGROUND

48





 



 


















	draft PC agenda 4-16-24
	PC_draftminutes_2024Feb20
	PC_draftminutes_20240312
	PC packet version
	staff report-The Timbers
	Application
	Bruce Parris tiny home community
	AERIAL MAP
	2024-4-2 LAURENS TINY HOME SITE PLAN
	Sheets and Views
	C200


	2024-4-2 LAURENS TINY HOME SITE PLAN2
	Sheets and Views
	C200 (2)



	PC packet
	staff report-Wateroak RV Park
	Application
	Acting Agent form
	aerial map
	Aerial 2
	WaterOak RV Park Prelim
	Chpt. 28 Article II


